
7330 Thornapple River Drive, P.O. Box 370, Ada, MI 49301 | 616.676.9191 | adatownshipmi.com 
 

 
 

 
 

ADA TOWNSHIP ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS SPECIAL MEETING 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2020, 4:30 P.M. 

7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 
ADA, MICHIGAN 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 15, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 

 
V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Request for variance to permit accessory buildings as principal buildings, prior to the 

construction of single-family dwellings, on two (2) parcels being created from the subject 
properties included in a 13 parcel Land Division, 3050 and 3046 Pettis Ave NE, parcel   
numbers 41-15-05-300-028 & 029, Michael C. Bieker, for the Michael C. Bieker Trust &   
Stephen A. Bartz 

 
VII. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 



 ADA TOWNSHIP ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS                             
        MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020, SPECIAL MEETING           

 
 
A special meeting of the Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals was held on Tuesday, September 15, 2020, 
at 4:30 p.m.  The meeting was held by video/audio-conferencing, in conformance with the Michigan Governor’s 
Executive Order.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dixon at 4:36 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 

 
Members present:  Burton, Dixon, Nuttall, Smith 
Members absent:  McNamara 
Staff Present:  Bajdek, Ferro  
Public:  1 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Nuttall, supported by Smith, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried with roll call vote 4-0, 
with 1 absent.   
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Moved by Smith, supported by Burton, to approve the August 11, 2020 meeting minutes as presented.  Motion 
carried with roll call vote 4-0, with 1 absent. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 1.  Request for variance from the required rear yard setback of 50 feet to a width varying from  
      41.7 feet to 45.8 feet, for a deck and associated stairs, 770 Dogwood Meadows Dr. SE, 
      Parcel No. 41-15-34-479-102, Chris Penning for Charles Draznin & Nirali Bora 
 
Dixon invited the applicant to present his request.  Mr. Draznin stated he lives in the Ada Moorings neighborhood 
at 770 Dogwood Meadows Dr, SE.  An overview of the variance request for the proposed deck project was given 
by Mr. Draznin.  He stated that his current deck is structurally unsafe and explained the nonconformities of it and 
the associated stairs.   
 
Bajdek summarized the request as included in his staff memo.  Bajdek stated a new rear yard deck system is 
planned for the subject property, which does include the replacement of an existing 12’ x 12’ elevated deck and 
associated stairs along with an eight (8) foot northwesterly extension which would create a 12’ x 20’ elevated 
deck; a ground level deck is also proposed.  Bajdek stated additionally, a 4-season room is planned to be 
constructed on the 12’ x 12’portion of the deck in the future, and that is stated on the attached survey drawing/site 
plan.  The elevated deck and ground level deck are planned to “tie” into each other/connect with one another. 
 
Bajdek stated the existing 12’ x 12’ elevated deck (without stairs) was indicated on the site plan provided and 
approved at the time of building permit application submittal for the construction of the existing dwelling.  
However, with the submittal of a building permit application for the current deck project, as the applicant stated, it 

DRAFT 



Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals                                                                                                                 
Minutes of September 15, 2020 Special Meeting 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

DRAFT 

was determined that a portion/corner of the existing deck was constructed not meeting the required 50-foot 
setback and that unapproved deck stairs also exist, not conforming to rear yard setback regulations. 
 
The northwestern portion of the corner of the elevated deck, as well as the stairs, do not satisfy the 50-foot 
rear yard setback due to the rear lot line running at an angle and the onsite placement/orientation of the dwelling 
causing an irregular back yard configuration. Bajdek pointed out that the ground level decks that are less than 30 
inches above grade are not subject to the setback requirements, so we are only looking at the elevated deck. 
 
Bajdek reviewed the criteria which must be met in order for the Zoning Board of Appeals to grant a variance: 
 

1. Whether unique physical circumstances exist which cause a “practical difficulty” in complying with 
the Zoning Ordinance standards. 
 
The layout design of the home, as well as its location in relationship to the irregular shape of the back yard 
due to the angular rear lot line, causes a practical difficultly in constructing a moderately sized elevated deck 
with associated stairs meeting the required 50-foot rear yard setback that logically connects to a ground level 
deck. 

 
2. Whether granting the variance would alter the essential character of the area. 

 
The granting of the variance would not alter the essential character of the area.   

 
3. Whether the circumstances leading to the variance are self-created. 

 
Circumstances leading to the variance are primarily not self-created.   
 

4. Whether amending the Zoning Ordinance standards is a more appropriate remedy to the situation. 
 
An amendment of the Zoning Ordinance is not deemed as an appropriate remedy to the situation.  

 
Bajdek concluded the layout design of the home, as well as its location in relationship to the irregular shape of the 
back yard, due to the angular rear lot line, causes a practical difficulty in constructing a moderately sized elevated 
deck with associated stairs meeting the required rear yard setback of 50 feet. 
 
It is staff’s recommendation that the subject setback variance request be approved to permit the elevated deck, 
including the future 4-season room, and associated stairs, as depicted on the submitted survey drawing/site plan, 
which would encroach into the required rear yard.   
 
Chair Dixon opened the public hearing.  There was no public comment, and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Smith asked if the original 12’ x 12’ deck was built when the house was built or added later.  Bajdek confirmed 
the deck was built at the time the house was built.   
 
Smith asked how does the elevated part of the deck tie into the ground level part of the deck.  Mr. Draznin 
explained the layout of the upper deck landing with stairs going down to lower level landing to tie in the upper 
and lower levels. 
 
Smith also asked a question on the applicant’s narrative statement regarding the future consideration of turning a 
portion of the new deck into a 4-season room.  If we grant the variance would it apply toward the future enclosure of 
the room.  Bajdek stated the variance would apply as long as the footprint is not expanded. 



Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals                                                                                                                 
Minutes of September 15, 2020 Special Meeting 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

DRAFT 

 
There was some discussion about the shapes of lots in the Ada Moorings neighborhood and Bajdek shared some 
history of other rear yard setback variances granted for decks in the neighborhood. 
 
Following Board member discussion, it was moved by Smith, supported by Nuttall, to approve the variance request, 
based on the findings that the required standards to grant the variance have been satisfied.   Motion carried with roll 
call vote 4-0, with 1 absent. 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 
No correspondence was received. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Burton, supported by Nuttall to adjourn meeting at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith 
Ada Township Clerk 
 
rs:eb 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 09-30-20 

 

 
TO:  Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
FROM:  Brent Bajdek – Planner/Zoning Administrator 
RE:  Agenda Item for the October 6, 2020 October 27, 2020 Special Meeting 
 
 
1. Request for variance to permit accessory buildings as principal buildings, prior to the 

construction of single-family dwellings, on two (2) parcels being created from the subject 
properties included in a 13 parcel Land Division, Parcel Nos. 41-15-05-300-028 & 029, Michael 
C. Bieker, for the Michael C. Bieker Trust & Stephen A. Bartz 
 

Overview 
 
A land division request was recently approved by the Planning Commission allowing for the creation 
of 13 parcels from the subject properties (3050 & 3046 Pettis Ave. NE), zoned RP-1 Rural 
Preservation 1.  The two (2) parcels that are included in the land division are a 95.2-acre parcel and a 
five (5) acre parcel; both parcels are occupied by existing homes.  The 95-acre parcel is also occupied 
by several accessory buildings, including one previously granted zoning approval as a private heliport, 
and a large ‘red’ barn (built as an agricultural building); all of these existing improvements are 
proposed to be retained. 
 
Two (2) accessory buildings (the one previously granted zoning approval as a private heliport and a 
large ‘red’ barn) are desired to remain on parcels without principal structures by the applicant, with one 
(1) on proposed Parcel ‘B’ and the other on proposed Parcel ‘J.’  It is the applicant’s intent to construct 
new single-family homes/principal structures on the parcels within 24 months/2 years and the buildings 
becoming accessory to such dwellings once they are built. 
 
A condition of the approval of the land division was that the splitting of proposed Parcels ‘B’ and ‘J,’ 
with the existing accessory buildings remaining, shall only be permitted if a variance to permit this 
condition is granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals, since Zoning Ordinance regulations prohibit an 
accessory building on parcel without a principal structure 78-20(a)(1).  
 
Please note if the subject variance request was to be granted by the Board, the time in which the 
properties would be brought back into conformance with 78-20(a)(1) of the Zoning Ordinance would be 
once single-family dwellings are constructed on them. 
 
Additionally, please be made aware that the zoning approval for the private heliport on the current 95-
acre parcel was terminated and became null and void with the approval of the land division and site 
plan by the Planning Commission. 
 
 
 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

Analysis 
 
Since the subject variance request is related to use (to permit accessory buildings without principal 
structures), it is considered a use variance.  Please be reminded that a use variance is a variance 
that permits a use of land or structure that would not otherwise be allowed in the zoning district in 
which the parcel is located.  
 
Additionally, zoning administrative decisions are permanent; they cannot be made on a temporary 
basis or have an expiration date. 
 
The Board of the Zoning Appeals may grant variances only upon finding that the following criteria 
have been satisfied: 
 

1. Whether unique circumstances exist which cause a “hardship” in complying with the 
Zoning Ordinance standards. 
 
Literal enforcement will create a hardship by requiring the accessory buildings to be removed 
from the property due to a land division of a property, which satisfies the Land Division Act and 
Township regulations.  The existing buildings that are intended to become accessory buildings 
to dwellings once they are built, have remaining value which will be lost if required to be 
removed from the property. 

  
2. Whether granting the variance would alter the essential character of the area. 

 
The granting of the variance would not alter the essential character of the area.  No physical 
modifications to the exterior of the existing buildings are proposed at this time. 

 
3. Whether the circumstances leading to the variance are self-created. 

 
New homes are planned to be constructed on both parcels no later than 24 months/2 years 
from now.  The only circumstance/action creating the non-conformities is by the land division of 
a property, which satisfies the Land Division Act and Township regulations. 
 

4. Whether amending the Zoning Ordinance standards is a more appropriate remedy to 
the situation. 
 
An amendment of the Zoning Ordinance is not deemed as an appropriate remedy to the 
situation.  The conditions leading to this variance request are not so common or recurring, 
which would indicate that amending the zoning regulations would be a more appropriate 
solution. 

 
Conclusion & Recommendation 
 
Literal enforcement will create a hardship by requiring the accessory buildings to be removed from the 
property due to a land division of a property, which satisfies the Land Division Act and Township 
regulations.  Allowing the existing accessory buildings to remain on proposed Parcels ‘B’ and ‘J’ until 
single-family dwellings are constructed will not alter the essential character of the area. 
 
Approval of the variance request is recommended by Staff, subject to the condition that the 
accessory buildings shall not be used for any purposes. 











A
B

C

D
E

F

G

H
IJ

K

L

M (LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT)

SCALE: 1" = 100'
2 FT CONTOURS

5252 Clyde Park, S.W.     Grand Rapids, MI  49509
Phone: (616) 531-3660
www.exxelengineering.com

Fax: (616) 531-2121

Description :
  Part of the NW 1/4 and part of the SW 1/4 of Section 5, T7N,
R10W, Ada Township, Kent County, Michigan, described as:
Beginning at the West 1/4 corner of said Section 5; thence
N88°39'42"E 1337.17 feet along the East-West 1/4 line of said
Section; thence N00°34'26"E 628.42 feet along the West line of
the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of said Section; thence N88°38'06"E
1337.38 feet parallel with the North line of the SE 1/4 of the NW
1/4 of said Section; thence S00°35'29"W 629.05 feet along the
North-South 1/4 line of said Section to the Center of said Section;
thence S00°35'29"W 1319.52 feet along the North-South 1/4 line
of said Section; thence S88°38'56"W 2670.31 feet along the
South line of the North 1/2 of the SW 1/4 of said Section; thence
N00°24'59"E 1319.98 feet along the West line of said Section to
the Place of Beginning. Subject to road right of way for Pettis
Avenue over the West 33.00 feet thereof.

ZONED RP-1

ZO
N

ED
 R

P-
1

ZONED RP-1

ZONED RP-1

ZO
N

ED
 R

P-
1

TEST HOLE NO. A1 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.8' SANDY TOPSOIL
0.8' - 3.0' LOAMY SAND, FINE, DAMP
3.0' - 5.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
5.0' - 7.0' SANDY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
7.0 - 9.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE
9.0' - 14.0' SAND, W/GRAVEL

TEST HOLE NO. A2 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.0' SANDY TOPSOIL
1.0' - 3.0' SANDY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
3.0' - 5.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
5.0' - 9.0' SAND, MED/COARSE

TEST HOLE NO. A3 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.3' SANDY TOPSOIL
1.3' - 3.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
3.0' - 5.0' LOAMY SAND, FINE, TAN
5.0' - 6.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE, BROWN
6.0' - 10.0' SAND, MED/COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. B1 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.0' SANDY TOPSOIL
1.0' - 3.0' SANDY LOAM, COARSE, BROWN
3.0' - 4.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
4.0' - 9.0' SAND, FINE/MED, BROWN

TEST HOLE NO. B2 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.3' SANDY TOPSOIL
0.3' - 2.0' LOAMY SAND, FINE, LIGHT BROWN
2.0' - 3.0' SANDY LOAM, FINE, LIGHT BROWN
3.0' - 9.0' SAND, FINE/MED, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. B3 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.5' SANDY TOPSOIL
0.5' - 2.0' LOAMY SAND, W/GRAVEL, TAN
2.0' - 4.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, LIGHT BROWN
4.0' - 5.0' SAND, FINE/MED, TAN
5.0' - 9.0' SAND, MED/COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. C1
0.0' - 0.8' TOPSOIL
0.8' - 4.0' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT BROWN
4.0' - 8.0' COARSE, SANDY LOAM,

RED/ORANGE

TEST HOLE NO. C2
0.0' - 0.7' TOPSOIL
0.7' - 1.2' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT BROWN
1.2' - 3.0' SANDY LOAM, COARSE,ORANGE
3.0' - 6.0' SAND, W/GRAVEL, COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. C3
0.0' - 0.7' TOPSOIL
0.7' - 2.0' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT BROWN
2.0' - 4.0' SANDY LOAM, COARSE

RED/ORANGE
4.0' - 6.0' SAND, W/GRAVEL, COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. D1
0.0' - 0.8' TOPSOIL
0.8' - 4.0' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT

BROWN/ORANGE
4.0' - 6.0' SANDY LOAM, COARSE,

RED/ORANGE
6.0' - 7.0' SAND, COARSE, TAN

MOTTLED AT 3.0'

TEST HOLE NO. D2
0.0' - 0.7' TOPSOIL
0.7' - 4.0' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT BROWN
4.0' - 6.5' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/GRAVEL,

RED/ORANGE
6.5' - 10.0' COARSE, SAND, TAN

MOTTLED AT 2.5'

TEST HOLE NO. D3
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 3.2' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE
3.2' - 4.0' CLAY LOAM, GREY/BROWN
4.0' - 7.0' LOAMY SAND, W/GRAVEL,

TAN
7.0' - 8.0' GRAVEL

MOTTLED AT 3.0'

TEST HOLE NO. F1
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 7.0' CLAY/LOAMY SAND, FINE, BROWN

TEST HOLE NO. F2
0.0' - 1.2' TOPSOIL
1.2' - 7.0' CLAY, BROWN

TEST HOLE NO. F3 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 6.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE
6.0' - 6.5' CLAY, BROWN
6.5' - 7.5' LOAMY SAND, W/GRAVEL,

RED/ORANGE, FINE
7.5' - 14.0' SAND, MED/COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. F1A (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 7.5' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/GRAVEL
7.5' - 15.0' SAND, W/ GRAVEL, W/ CLAY

LENSES, TAN/BROWN
15.0' - 20.0' SAND, MED/COARSE, TAN

MOTTLED AT 1.0'

TEST HOLE NO. F2A (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 5.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/ GRAVEL,

BROWN/GREY
5.0' - 12.0' SILTY LOAM, BROWN/GREY

MOTTLED AT 1.0'

TEST HOLE NO. G1 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.5' TOPSOIL
0.5' - 7.0' LOAM W/ SILT LOAM, BROWN
7.0' - 11.0' SAND W/GRAVEL, TAN, MED

MOTTLED AT 0.5'

TEST HOLE NO. G2 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.8' TOPSOIL
0.8' - 7.5' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE
7.5' - 12.5' SAND, MED, TAN,

W/GRAVEL
12.5' - 15.0' CLAY LOAM, GREY

MOTTLED AT 0.8'

TEST HOLE NO. H1
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 6.5' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE
6.5' - 11.0' LOAMY SAND, MED/COARSE,

TEST HOLE NO. H2
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 4.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, FINE
4.0' - 8.0' LOAMY SAND, MED/COARSE

TEST HOLE NO. I1
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 4.0' LOAMY SAND, SOME CLAY,

BROWN/ORANGE
4.0' - 8.0' SAND, W/ GRAVEL, COARSE

TEST HOLE NO. I2
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 4.0' LOAMY SAND, SOME CLAY,

BROWN/ORANGE
4.0' - 8.0' SAND, W/ GRAVEL, COARSE

TEST HOLE NO. J1
0.0' - 1.2' LOAMY TOPSOIL
1.2' - 3.0' LOAMY SAND, W/ROCKS,

BROWN
3.0' - 6.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/ROCKS,

LIGHT BROWN
6.0' - 10.0' SAND, COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. J2
0.0' - 1.0' LOAMY TOPSOIL
1.0' - 4.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, W/ROCKS,

BROWN
4.0' - 8.0' LOAMY SAND, W/ROCKS,

FINE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. K1 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.8' SANDY TOPSOIL
0.8' - 3.0' LOAMY SAND, FINE,

LIGHT BROWN
3.0' - 5.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, BROWN
5.0' - 9.0' SAND, W/GRAVEL, FINE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. K2 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 0.5' LOAMY TOPSOIL
0.5' - 1.0' LOAMY SAND, FINE,

LIGHT BROWN
1.0' - 3.0' SAND, MED, TAN
3.0' - 9.0' SAND, MED/COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. K3 (GEO PROBE)
0.0' - 1.0' SANDY TOPSOIL
1.0' - 3.0' SANDY LOAM, W/GRAVEL,

LIGHT BROWN
3.0' - 6.0' SANDY CLAY LOAM, BROWN
6.0' - 8.0' SAND, FINE, TAN
8.0' - 14.0' SAND, MED, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. L1
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 4.0' LOAMY SAND, BROWN, MED
4.0' - 8.0' SANDY LOAM, FINE, GREY/BROWN
8.0' - 9.0' SAND, FINE, BROWN

MOTTLED AT 4.0'

TEST HOLE NO. L2
0.0' - 1.0' TOPSOIL
1.0' - 2.5' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT BROWN
2.5' - 4.0' SANDY LOAM, COARSE,

RED/ORANGE
4.0' - 7.0' SAND, COARSE, TAN

TEST HOLE NO. L3
0.0' - 0.8' TOPSOIL
0.8' - 2.0' LOAMY SAND, LIGHT BROWN,

FINE
2.0' - 6.0' SAND, MED/COARSE, TAN

SOIL BORINGS A1-A3, B1-B3, C1-C3, D1-D3, F1-F3, F1A,
F2A, G1, G2, H1, H2, I1, I2, L1-L3 WERE TAKEN ON JULY
23, 2020, BY BRANDON BAXTER AND JASON WITH
KCHD.

SOIL BORINGS J1, J2, K1-K3, WERE TAKEN ON JULY 23,
2020, BY JASON WITH KCHD.

WHITETAIL TRAIL

P:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
07

\0
72

22
9\

D
ra

w
in

gs
\D

W
G

\0
72

22
9.

dw
g,

 1
3 

PA
R

C
EL

S-
2,

 8
/1

7/
20

20
 1

1:
14

:5
4 

AM
, j

de
ha

an


	draznin-latestchangesaug5.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	MEMO 09-15-20 ZBA (Special Meeting).pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	072229-13 PARCELS-2-08-17-20.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	13 PARCELS-2


	MEMO 10-06-20 ZBA.pdf
	MEMORANDUM

	ADP4F7B.tmp
	MEMORANDUM

	MEMO 10-06-20 ZBA.pdf
	MEMORANDUM




